
 

 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
NOVEMBER 21, 2013 

 

Present: 

 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer     Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary          General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner   

Thomas Good, Commissioner 

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner    

       

Absent: 

 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:07 A.M, followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  

  

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the minutes of the October 31st, 2013, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall and was carried unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT   

    
A. CONTRACT AWARD: 

 
SBDD CONVERSION OF FOUR (4) STORMWATER PUMPS AT THE S-3 & S-4/S-5 
PUMP STATIONS IN MIRAMAR – District Director Hart stated that SBDD had 
advertised for bids for the SBDD Conversion of four (4) Stormwater Pumps at the S-3 & 
S-4/S-5 Pump Stations in Miramar Project.   The District received a total of two (2) bids.  
The base bid amounts ranged in price from $60,174.00 to $63,200.00.  Each bidder was 
required to visit the job site locations with a SBDD representative as a prerequisite to 
submitting a bid.  
 
The lowest base bid was submitted by MWI Corporation in the amount of $60,174.00.  



 

 

 -2- 

 

SBDD has reviewed the bid submitted by MWI Corporation and has determined that the 
Contractor is qualified to perform the work and that the bid meets all requirements.  
SBDD is familiar with this Contractor and has been satisfied with their past work for the 
District.   District Director Hart recommended that the District award the contract for the 
SBDD Conversion of four (4) Stormwater Pumps at the S-3 & S-4/S-5 Pump Stations in 
Miramar Project to MWI Corporation in the amount of $60,174.00 as the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder.  In addition, he requested the award of Bid Alternates 1 
and 2 in the combined, not-to-exceed amount of $9,596.00 to MWI Corporation as the 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder.  The total, not-to-exceed amount of the contract 
will be $69,770.00.  Funding for this project will be split between the District’s 2013/2014 
Capital Improvement Plan ($34,462) and the S-3 Basin Improvements included under the 
General Operating Budget ($35,308).   
 
Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to award the SBDD Conversion of four (4) 

Stormwater Pumps at the S-3 & S-4/S-5 Pump Stations in Miramar Project to MWI 

Corporation for a total, not-to-exceed amount of $69,770.00.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Goggin. 

 

Commissioner Goggin asked if there will be SBDD staff supervising the project when the 

project is in process?  District Director Hart replied yes.  He stated that the District will be 

present at the pump stations when the pumps are removed; and that the District has the 

ability to be present at the location where the pumps will be rebuilt.  Commissioner Goggin 

asked if the reasoning behind the extra funding is to address unforeseen maintenance 

issues.  District Director Hart replied yes; the alternate bid items will allow the District to 

make any necessary repairs to the pump propellers while the pumps are out of service.  

Commissioner Goggin commented that he was happy to see the District think ahead, 

because he has seen municipalities failing on that aspect of projects, and it pleases him to 

see the District being pro-active on that issue.   

 

Chair Hodges suggested that when the District observes the progression of the project, and 

if any additional work is needed, that the District takes photos. 

 

Vice Chair Ryan asked if the pump propellers are recoverable if they chip or break?  He 

wanted to know if they can be rebuilt.  District Director Hart replied that the propellers are 

built into the pumps and are very difficult to remove, and that the contract allows the 

propellers to be rebuilt or replaced, depending on the condition.   

 

Commissioner Goggin inquired on the type of material that these pumps are constructed 

and if they are all the same throughout the District.  District Director Hart replied that they 

are made of steel and that they are all the same throughout the District. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 
B. REQUEST FOR RELEASE AND VACATION OF A GRANT OF EASEMENT 

FOR “PINES 184 PLAT” (AKA: PINES CROSSING PLAZA) 
 

District Director Hart stated that the District received a request to vacate an Ingress-



 

 

 -3- 

 

Egress Easement located within the proposed Pines Crossing Plaza development (aka: 

“Pines 184 Plat”).  The property is currently owned by Pines Crossings, LLC and is 

located on the southwest corner of Pines Boulevard and SW 184th Avenue. 

 

The reason for the request is to accommodate the proposed development plan for the 

property.  The applicant is required to obtain a Paving & Drainage Permit from the 

District and enter into a Maintenance & Indemnification Agreement. 

SBDD staff has no objection to this vacation request, subject to the property owner 

entering into a Maintenance & Indemnification Agreement, which will allow SBDD to 

access the property.  

There are no financial impacts to this Agenda Item, other than SBDD administrative 

costs; all other costs will be incurred by the property owner. 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the Release and Vacation of a Grant of 

Easement for “Pines 184 Plat” (AKA:  Pines Crossing Plaza) subject to the property owner 

entering into a Maintenance & Indemnification Agreement.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Goggin. 

 

Attorney Bell said that there were two easements that were recorded back-to-back and that 

a provision was added to the second easement for ingress/egress during the construction of 

water and sewer facilities.  He found it to be somewhat odd that it was done in this manner. 

 

Mr. Ed Ploski, land planner with Corporate Property Services in Deerfield Beach, 

discussed the history behind this easement.  He stated that in 2006 a site plan and plat were 

approved for this project and the easements were recorded as separate instruments, but the 

project did not go forward.  In 2011 his client purchased the property and now there is a 

new site plan; and there is an area that conflicts with the existing ingress/egress easement; 

and that is why they are asking for the release.  He said that it was unusual to do this type 

of an Agreement, but he believes it was more of a City requirement.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked what is being proposed for the property.  Mr. Ploski 

replied a Walgreens and Aldi Grocery Store.   

 

Commissioner Good commented that he heard that this is an unusual easement, and he 

asked District Director Hart if the District should be concerned regarding this matter.  

District Director Hart replied that although it is unusual, the District will have their rights 

and ability to access covered within the Maintenance and Indemnification Agreement.   

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 
 

C. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-12 – CEMETERY CANAL CONSERVATION 
EASEMENT AND AGREEMENT WITH BROWARD COUNTY 

   

District Director Hart stated that Proposed Resolution 2013-12 authorizes SBDD to enter 

into and execute a Deed of Conservation Easement and Agreement (“Agreement”) with 



 

 

 -4- 

 

Broward County. 

 

The Agreement is a joint Conservation Easement and Agreement with Broward County 

for the Cemetery Canal mitigation area that was constructed by SBDD in 2004.  This 

wetland mitigation area was a requirement under the District’s permitting for the S-9/S-

10 basin improvements due to impacts on existing wetlands.  The District obtained a 

permit from both the Broward County Environmental Protection and Growth 

Management Department and South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) for 

the S-9/S-10 basin improvements.  Both permits required the dedication of a 

Conservation Easement over the wetland mitigation area as provided for in the 

Agreement. SBDD approved such an Agreement in 2004, however the 2004 Agreement 

was never executed by Broward County or recorded in the public records. 

 

The S-9/S10 basin improvements were completed in 2004, including the wetland 

mitigation area; and additional permit modifications have been approved and completed 

since then (i.e.: intermediate gate structures).  SBDD has completed its monitoring and 

reporting requirements for the wetland mitigation area required under the permits.   

SFWMD informed the District earlier this year that the Conservation Easement was 

never recorded and was still outstanding. 

 

The attached Agreement represents the current form for a joint Conservation Easement 

and Agreement by Broward County.  The language, terms and conditions of the new 

form are essentially the same as the 2004 document previously approved and executed by 

SBDD.  SFWMD will no longer be a signatory on the Agreement.  

 

District Director Hart commented that the District retains all of their rights over the canal 

for stormwater purposes.  The property is owned by Broward County, but the District has 

a reservation over it that was transferred to the District from SFWMD, and the 

Agreement provides for all of the District’s rights to remain in place for use of the entire 

area for stormwater purposes.   

 

There will be legal costs and administrative costs associated with this agenda item, which 

will be funded through the General Operating account.  The Cemetery Canal mitigation 

area will also require on-going maintenance by SBDD, which will also be funded through 

the General Operating account as part of the District’s annual maintenance program.  The 

estimated annual cost of maintenance is $1,000.00 or less.   

 

District Director Hart requested approval of Resolution 2013-12 authorizing SBDD to 

enter into a Deed of Conservation Easement and Agreement with Broward County for the 

construction and maintenance of the Cemetery Canal wetland mitigation area located on 

property owned by Broward County and the creation of a Conservation Easement over 

said mitigation area.   

   
Commissioner Goggin made a motion to approve Resolution 2013-12 which authorizes 

SBDD to enter into and execute a Deed of Conservation Easement and Agreement 

(“Agreement”) with Broward County.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-



 

 

 -5- 

 

Woodall. 

 

Discussion ensued among members of the Commission.   

 

Attorney Bell stated that there will be a cost to update the title work. He said that the 

Conservation Easement itself was actually signed by the Board back in 2004 and delivered 

to the County, and at that point, it disappeared.  District Director Hart stated that the 

County will require an “Opinion of Title” and that Attorney Bell will be handling it.  He 

said that his goal is to only have to do the title work once.  

 

Commissioner Minnaugh stated her displeasure with the County dropping the ball on this 

item back in 2004.  District Director Hart commented that he is not sure why this wasn’t 

completed in 2004, and that it should have been followed through.  Fortunately, the District 

was able to use much of the work that was done in 2004; and it was just a matter of 

modifying what was previously completed.  Commissioner Minnaugh asked if the 

Agreement could be modified to state that, “in the event that this does not get recorded and 

signed within a 30-day period, that the County will be responsible for any other cost 

incurred to finally have it done”.   

 

District Director Hart felt that the County would not agree to that, and he assured 

Commissioner Minnaugh that he will do everything in his power to get this recorded.   

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 
D. OTHER 
 

 Taft Street Canal – District Director Hart updated the Board on the Taft Street Canal 
project and the concept of a partnership with the City of Pembroke Pines.   
 
He said that the City has been re-evaluating their approach to the project and the 
District has been sharing information with them on its’ previous projects.  There has 
been a change in the position of City Engineer, and the new engineer, along with an 
outside consultant, has reviewed the project from a different perspective; and 
actually like the previous work that was done by the District.  He said that after 
seeing the slope and the finished product, they felt that it was adequate and 
appropriate for what they wanted to achieve above the canal and for the road.  The 
City has rescinded their prior award of the design/build contract which had a total 
contract amount of $848,000, and is now going to complete the remainder of the 
canal with the same methodology as the District used previously.  They are planning 
to use the same Contractor, for the same unit price, as the District used on its last 
project.  They now expect to complete the canal work for a total amount of 
$162,000.   
 
District Director Hart said that this is a win-win situation for the District, because 
the methodology the City will be using is preferred by SBDD.  It includes deepening 
the canal, and stabilizing the canal bank, and will be a significant improvement to 
the conveyance capacity of the canal.  District Director Hart said that the District 
will be working jointly with the City on preliminary work before the Contractor 



 

 

 -6- 

 

starts, including removing some trash and debris from the bottom of the canal, while 
the City will be clearing and removing the vegetation off the slope.   
 
Vice Chair Ryan asked District Director Hart to explain the stages of the Taft Street 
Canal project.  District Director Hart explained that the canal bank work will be 
done first, and that towards the end of next year they could be repaving the road.  
Vice Chair Ryan had concerns with the way the road slopes towards the canal and he 
asked if there will be any cost to the District.  District Director Hart replied no; that 
due to the fact that the City was saving approximately $700,000 they are not asking 
the District to contribute to the project. 
 
Following Vice Chair Ryan’s question, Commissioner Goggin stated that from an 
engineering standpoint, it makes sense to start the canal project first vs. the road 
repair. District Director Hart agreed, and stated that he believes the City will be 
stabilizing the canal first, then placing a landscape buffer for the residents along Taft 
Street, and finally resurfacing the roadway. 
 

 Public Feedback – District Director Hart shared an email he received from Mr. Gary 
Toussaint, a resident from the Knolls area that said “GREAT JOB”!  He said that the 
resident was very pleased with the way the District staff handled his concern.  He 
also received a compliment from a resident that came in for a permit and was very 
happy with the way the process was handled. 

 
 CIP Update – District Director Hart said that the Basin 3 Improvements should be 

completed within the next 12 to 18 months.  The District is proposing to upgrade the 
two pumps, which was approved today; and to replace the wood truss roof with a 
concrete roof, which is currently under design; and he hopes to have that out for bid 
come January and approved by February and to have it completed before the start of 
next year’s hurricane season with a budget of $150,000.00.         

 
 Sluice Gates – District Director Hart presented the Board with pictures of different 

sluice gates within the District and explained how they work. 
 

05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  

 

Attorney Bell said that there have been no changes regarding the Special District Legislation. 

 

Attorney Bell brought to the Board’s attention that a cable company by the name of “Hotwire 

Communications” has contracted with the Pembroke Falls HOA to place cable lines within 

SBDD’s Lake Maintenance Easements (LME) behind private properties, but the LME is 

dedicated only to SBDD, and there does not appear to be any transfer of the developer’s 

rights to utilize the property for making these utility improvements over to the HOA. 

Hotwire has started placing some of the cable (fiber optics) without a permit from the 

District and now Hotwire is asking that the District issue them a permit.   Attorney Bell 

stated that the permit will have to have several caveats in it, such as:  

 The HOA/Hotwire would defend SBDD if there are any lawsuits filed by 

homeowners, and 

 The HOA/Hotwire, would pick up all legal fees, if any; and  



 

 

 -7- 

 

 The HOA/Hotwire will have to deposit money up front to put the Agreement 

together.  

 

Attorney Bell said that there is at least one homeowner who is upset.  The homeowner said 

that Hotwire Communications placed what looks like a manhole in his backyard, that is 

raised approximately 2’ above ground level, and the homeowner said he is thinking of taking 

this to court to place an injunction to stop the work.  Attorney Bell brought this to Hotwire’s 

attention, but they did not seem that concerned.  The homeowner also discussed with 

Attorney Bell how this might be able to move forward.  He is the former President of the 

HOA and is fairly familiar with their documents. 

 

Attorney Bell asked the Board for direction on how to move forward with this matter. 

 

District Director Hart explained that according to the Declaration (Declaration of Master 

Association Covenants & Restrictions for Pembroke Falls), the original developer of the 

property had the right to go into the LME and use the 20’ for improvements, etc., but the 

HOA does not have documentation that transferred those rights to them.  Unfortunately, the 

HOA seems to have misplaced, or no longer possesses that document, so in essence, they 

may not have the right to authorize the installation of the cable.  District Director Hart said 

that the District has no objection to the work, but the HOA needs to have the right to go onto 

someone’s private property to do this.  Attorney Bell informed the one homeowner, that if 

this comes back before the Board at the next meeting, that he would let him know and give 

him a copy of what was proposed, and he will be able to voice his opinion at that time.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked how they are placing these cables along the dry lots.  

Attorney Bell answered that they are placing them in the front yard through a utility 

easement, but prefer to place it in the back along the lake lots because it is cheaper.  She does 

not understand why they cannot do the same installation on both the dry lots and the lake 

lots.  Commissioner Goggin commented that although he does not live by a lake, he doesn’t 

think that those homeowners want anyone digging up their yard, regardless of what the HOA 

wants to do.   

 

Commissioner Good stated that he suspects that Hotwire Communications is doing this in 

combination with cellular facilities (mini antennas).  He explained that the reason for 

Hotwire Communications to place their cable through the LME is the strict rules that govern 

communication facilities, installations, easements, rights-of-ways, costs, etc.  He is familiar 

with municipal rights-of-ways and easements, etc., and he offered to share with Attorney 

Bell his past experiences with some of the federal and state language that may be helpful to 

him in this regard.  He said that these companies may be required to provide monetary 

compensation for access to rights-of-ways or easements.  He said that there may be some 

limiting ability to prevent them from placing those cables in the LME; because they can 

litigate, and you may lose, because the laws are clearly written.  However, he said that there 

are certain things that you can do: you can force them to register with your agency; you can 

force them to provide you with compensation that is afforded by law; place restrictions on 

their ability to have certain kinds of installations, etc.   

 



 

 

 -8- 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that this will come up again with other HOAs because 

they are looking at independent cable companies due to how expensive cable has become.   

 

Commissioner Goggin said that according to what has been discussed so far, the company 

has ceased to continue working; and he asked District Director Hart for confirmation.  

District Director Hart said that Hotwire had continued working, but not in the back yards; 

however, he was recently made aware by the same homeowner referenced by Attorney Bell, 

that they were continuing to do work in the backyards (pulling cable and working within the 

previously installed boxes).  Commissioner Goggin asked Attorney Bell if this is an on-going 

project and the District does not have an Agreement, is this not a liability risk.  Attorney Bell 

answered that there is always a possibility.   

 

Chair Hodges agreed with Commissioner Good and reiterated that this is exactly why they 

are doing it, because they are trying to get around the restrictions and requirements that are 

placed on them by the cities, and it is not serving the residents, it is serving themselves.  He 

said that it’s cheaper, and that is why they are placing the cables in the back.  

 

Commissioner Good commented that this is a very complicated matter and he does not 

believe that the District is in a position to say no.  He said that there may be a need for a bit 

of support with this matter.  He recommended that the District get an outside lawyer to 

support the District’s attorney, and to advise the District on how best to proceed.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger agrees with Commissioner Good and commented that she believes 

that the District will need someone who has dealt with FCC, communications, etc., so that 

the District can make the correct decision. 

 

Vice Chair Ryan commented that this is placing the District in a precarious situation as far as 

future lawsuits.  He commented that Commissioner Minnaugh came up with an alternative 

that might be acceptable to the HOAs.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh said that she would not hire an FCC attorney at this time; that the 

District should continue sending letters trying to enforce its permitting requirements until the 

District hears otherwise; and at that time, they could discuss what needs to be done.  

Commissioner Mersinger disagreed, and said that she feels that the District should do their 

research now, and get information now as to what the District’s legal rights are, because she 

sees the District becoming party to that lawsuit by the homeowner.  She said she prefers to be 

on firm legal ground.   

  

After further discussion, Commissioner Good made a motion that Attorney Bell retain legal 

support for interpretation of FCC regulations with a maximum of $5,000 and to return later if 

that amount is increased.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Minnaugh and it was 

carried unanimously. 
 

06.  APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously. 



 

 

 -9- 

 

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

   

   None. 

 

08.  MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, December 19th at 8:00 a.m.  

 
Adjournment at 9:30 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

 

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 
 


































































































































